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200 ANNUAL REPORT TO SEAREEOLDERS
TER COMIZANY

We arc engaged in the international offshore drilling and completion of
exploratory and developmental ol and gas wells and related support, manage-
moent and consulting services. Presently, we own and operate & premium, modorn
flect of eight mobile offshore drilling units and manage the operations of (wo
operalor-owned platform drilling units currently located in Northwest Australia,
From fiscal yvear 1997 to 2003, we invested approximetely $460 million in

upgrading seven mobile offshore drilling units and constructing an ultra-premi

Jack-up unit. We support our operations from our Houston headquari
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offices currently located in Vietnam, Australia, Malaysia, Egypt, Indonesia,

Singapore and the United Kingdom.

FINANCIAL BICIRILIGIRITS
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PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS AND EMPLOYEES:

During fiscal year 2005, we recorded improved profitability with a net income of approximately
$26 million, or $1.71 per share, and an equipment utilization rate of 98%. We ended fiscal year 2005 with a
strong balance sheet, an excellent contract backlog, high demand from our clients and a positive future
outlook.

Effective worldwide utilization of offshore drilling equipment is over 97% with tightness in all of our
markets, both geographically and by type of unit. We also continue to see high levels of bid activity for
future opportunities around the world with our clients planning and committing on drilling units further in
advance. We have taken advantage of the strong market environment to build a contract back log with
record dayrates for all eight of our units. Currently, we have approximately 90% and 70% of our available rig
days contracted for fiscal years 2006 and 2007, respectively. Completion in 2003 of our $460 million major
upgrade and new construction program has resulted in us having eight active units well-positioned for
attractive opportunities and significant market improvements.

With our contract back log and the current strong market environment supporting high equipment
utilization and historically high dayrates for our eight units, we expect significantly improved cash flow and
operating results in fiscal year 2006 compared to fiscal year 20056. Our contract backlog and current contract
mix also provide the potential for further upside in fiscal year 2007.

The ATWOOD EAGLE, ATWOOD HUNTER, ATWOOD FALCON, ATWOOD BEACON and
SEAHAWK all have contract commitments through fiscal 2007. The ATWOOD FALCON has a future
contract that provides for an upgrade to 5,000 ft. water-depth capability in Malaysia, with our client paying
a fee and a dayrate during the upgrade. The SEAHAWK will also undergo an upgrade for a two-year
contract commencing during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006. We expect contract rollovers for our three
drilling units with contracts expiring in fiscal year 2006 or 2007 with the potential for further improvements
in dayrates: early calendar year 2007 for the VICKSBURG:; late calendar year 2006 or early calendar year
2007 for the ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS; and the first half of calendar year 2006 for the RICHMOND.
In addition to our eight owned units, we have management contracts for two client-owned platform rigs in
Australia. We understand that renewed drilling operations for one platform rig are currently targeted for
commencement during the second quarter of fiscal year 2006 for a pericd of eight to nine months.

We are pleased with our performance and current position. The longer-term fundamentals in our
industry are strong and provide upside potential and opportunities in fiscal year 2006 and beyond. Our
strategy to focus on providing premium equipment and safe, quality services in attractive international
markets based on long-standing client relationships has served us well. The quality, talent and hard work of
our employees around the world is more important than ever in today's environment, and we believe our
employees’ performance will be an important factor in attracting clients. We believe that our ability to be
responsive to our clients’ needs is ancther key factor in our client relationships, performance and success.

Our strong position and today's positive market outlook are exciting and we look forward to seeking
further opportunities to improve our performance. We thank our shareholders for their confidence and trust
and our employees whose hard work and contributions have produced the improved results reported for
fiscal year 2005.

JOHN R. IRWIN
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ATWOOPR BACGLE

THE ATWOOD EAGLE IS CURRENTLY
WORKING OFF THE COAST OF
AUSTRALIA. THE RIG HAS MULTI-WELL
CoNT RA@TUJ/—,\_J_LJ COMMITMENTS WITH
WOODSIDE ENERCY, LTD, (*WOODSIDE")
AND BEP BILLITON PETROLEUM WHICH
SHOULD :,XLP'@T\’D TO JUNE/JULY 2007.
UPON COMPLETION OF THESE
COMMITMENTS, THE RIC HAS A ONTE (1)
WELL CONTRACT COMMITMENT WITH
ENT AUSTRALIA BY FOLLOWED BY A
ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT EXTENSION
WITH WOODSIDE.

ATWOROD EUNTIER

SINCIE TE’T COMPLETION OF THE ATWOQD
HUNTER'S UPGRADE AT THE END OF

CALI ““ND/A&R 2001, THE RIG HAS WORKED OFF
THE COAST OF EGYPT, THE RIGC’S @U’RR‘?W
CONTRACT SHOULD BE COMPLETE
MARCH/APRIL 2008, IVIMEDIATELY W@N
COMPLETION OF THE RIG'S CURRENT
@@NTM@T IT WILL COMMENCE A TWO (2)
YEAR CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENT WITH
WOODSIDE ENERGY LTD.

Zj
@




ATWOOD BEACORN
THE ATWOOD BEACON IS CURRENTLY WORKING OFF THE COAST OF VIETNAM. THE RIG'S
CURRENT CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENT COULD EXTEND INTO THE FOURTH QUARTER OF
FISCAL YEAR 2008. UPON COMPLETION OF ITS CURRENT CONTRACT, THE RIG WILL BE
RELOCATED TO INDIA TO COMMENCE WORKING UNDER A TWENTY-FIVE (26) MONTH CONTRACT
FOR GUJARAT STATE PETROLEUM CORPORATION LTD:.




Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW

At or For the Years Ended Septermber 30,

(In thousands, except per share amounts, fleet

data and ratios) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA:
REVENUES ..o $ 176,156 $163,454 $144,765 $149,157 $147 541
Contract drilling costs ................... {102,849) (98,936) (98,600) (75,088  (70,014)
General and administrative expenses ... ... (14,245) (11,389) (14,015)  (10,080) (9,250)
Depreciation. « oo (26,735) (31,582) (2b,758) (23,882) (25,579)
OPERATING INCOME ............ ... ... 32,327 21,547 6,492 40,107 42,698
Other expense . ... (6,719) (9,145) (4,856) (1,330) (1,677
Tax (provision) benefit ................... 403 (4,815) (14,438) (10,492) (13,775)
NET INCOME (LOSS). ............... 28,011 $ 7,587 $(12,802) $ 28,285 $ 27,346
PER SHARE DATA: '
Earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic ... .71 $ 055 $ (0920 $§ 204 $ 1.98
Diluted ....... .. .. i 1.67 $ 064 $ (©92) $ 202 $ 196
Average commeon shares outstanding:
Basic ... 15,206 13,859 13,846 13,839 13,828
Diluted ... 15,610 14,032 13,846 13,994 13,978
FLEET DATA:
Number of rigs owned or managed, at end
of pericd(1) . ... .. ... 11 11 11 10 11
Utilization rate for in-service rigs(2)........ 98% 93% 92% 86% 83%
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalents ............... 18,982 §$ 16416 $ 21551 $ 27655 $ 12,621
Working capital ... 35,894 32,913 26,083 43,735 25,057
Net property and equipment.............. 390,778 401,141 443,102 368,397 306,254
Total assets ... 495,694 498,936 522,674 445238 353,878
Total long-term debt (including current
DOTEION) « v e 90,000 181,000 205000 115,000 60,000
Shareholders’ equity(3)(4) ................ 362,137 271,689 263,467 276,133 247 636
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 1.64 1.55 1.52 2.44 2.21

Notes —

(1) Subsequent to the end of our 2005 fiscal year, in October 2005, we sold the SEASCOUT,
reducing the total number of rigs owned or managed rigs to ten.

(2) Excludes managed rigs, the SEASCOUT, and contractual downtime on rigs upgraded.

(3) We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock.

(4) In October 2004, we sold 1,175,000 shares of common stock in a public offering.
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SECURITIES LITIGATION SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

Statements included in this report which are
not historical facts (including any statements
concerning plans and objectives of management
for future operations or economic performance,
or assumptions related thereto) are ‘‘forward-
looking statements'' within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
In addition, we and our representatives may
from to time to time make other oral or written
statements which are also forward-looking
statements.

These forward-looking statements are made
based upon management's current plans, expec-
tations, estimates, assumptions and beliefs con-
cerning future events impacting us and therefore
involve a number of risks and uncertainties. We
caution that forward-looking statements are not
guarantees and that actual results could differ
materially from those expressed or implied in the
forward-looking statements.

Important factors that could cause our ac-
tual results of operations or our actual financial
conditions to differ include, but are not necessa-
rily limited to:

¢ our dependence on the oil and gas
industry;

* the operational risks involved in drilling
for oil and gas;

* changes in rig utilization and dayrates in
response to the level of activity in the oil
and gas industry, which is significantly
affected by indications and expectations
regarding the level and volatility of ¢il and
gas prices, which in turn are affected by
such things as political, economic and
weather conditions affecting or potentially
affecting regional or worldwide demand
for oil and gas, actions or anticipated
actions by OPEC, inventory levels, deliver-
ability constraints, and future market
activity;

11

the extent to which customers and poten-
tial customers continue to pursue deep-
water drilling;

exploration success or lack of exploration
success by our customers and potential
customers;

the highly competitive and cyclical nature
of our business, with periods of low
demand and excess rig availability;

the impact of the war with Iraq or other
military operations, terrorist acts or em-
bargoes elsewhere;

our ability to enter into and the terms of
future drilling contracts;

the availability of qualified personnel,

our failure to retain the business of one or
more significant customers;

the terminaticn or renegotiation of con-
tracts by customers;

the availability of adequate insurance at a
reasonable cost;

the occurrence of an uninsured loss;

the risks of international operations, in-
cluding possible economic, political, social
or monetary instability, and compliance
with foreign laws;

the effect public health concerns could
have on our international operations and
financial results;

compliance with or breach of environmen-
tal laws;

the incurrence of secured debt or addi-
tional unsecured indebtedness or other
obligations by us or our subsidiaries;

the adequacy of sources of liquidity;

currently unknown rig repair needs and/or
additional opportunities to accelerate



planned maintenance expenditures due to
presently unanticipated rig downtime;

higher than anticipated accruals for per-
formance-based compensation due to bet-
ter than anticipated performance by us,
higher than anticipated severance ex-
penses due to unanticipated employee
terminations, higher than anticipated legal
and accounting fees due to unanticipated
financing or other corporate transactions,
and other factors that could increase
general and administrative expenses;

the actions of our competitors in the
offshore drilling industry, which could
significantly influence rig dayrates and
utilization;

changes in the geogrephic areas in which
our customers plan to operate, which in
turn could change our expected effective
tax rate;

changes in oil and gas drilling technology
or in our competitors’' drilling rig fleets
that could make our drilling rigs less
competitive or require major capital in-
vestments to keep them competitive;

rig availability,

the effects and uncertainties of legal and
administrative proceedings and other
contingencies;

the impact of governmental laws and
regulations and the uncertainties involved
in their administration, particularly in
some foreign jurisdictions;

12

* changes in accepted interpretations of
accounting guidelines and other accournt-
ing pronouncements and tax laws;

* the risks invclved in the construction,
upgrade, and repair of our drilling
units; and

¢ such other factors as may be discussed in
our reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC.

These factors are not necessarily all of the
important factors that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those expressed in any
of our forward-looking statements. Other un-
known or unpredictable factors could also have
material adverse effects on future results. The
words ‘‘believe,” “impact,” “intend,” "'esti-
mate,’”’ "anticipate,” "‘plan’ and similar expres-
sions identify forward-looking statements. These
forward-looking statements are found at various
places throughout this report. When considering
any forward-looking statement, you should also
keep in mind the risk factors described in our
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
2005, particularly in Item 1A Risk Factors, and in
other reports or filings we make with the SEC
from time to time. Undue reliance should not be
placed on these forward-looking statements,
which are applicable only on the date hereof.
Neither we nor our representatives have a
general obligation to revise or update these
forward-looking statements to reflect events or
circumstances that arise after the date hereof or
to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RECENT EVENT

Subsequent to filing our Form 8-K on De-
cember 2, 2005 announcing our earnings for the
fourth cuarter of the fiscal year 2005 and the
year ended September 30, 2005 of $1.70 per
diluted share and $.45 per diluted share respec-
tively, we received additional information con-
cerning deferred taxes in Australia which
resulted in an increase in the deferred tax
provision for the quarter and year ended Sep-
tember 30, 2005 of approximately $360,000 or
$0.03 per share. This additional deferred tax
provision reduced basic and diluted earnings per
share for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005 to
$.44 and $.42, respectively and for fiscal year
2005 to $1.71 and $1.67, respectively.

OUTLOOK

Current effective utilization of worldwide
offshore drilling equipment is over 87%. All of
our eight drilling units have contractual dayrate
commitments that are the highest in their
respective histories. Currently, we have approxi-
mately 90% and 70% of our available rig days
contracted for fiscal years 2006 and 2007, respec-
tively. A comparison of the average per day
revenues for fiscal year 2005 for each of our eight
drilling units to their current highest contracted
dayrate commitment is as follows:

Average Current

Per Day Highest

Revenues Contracted

for Fiscal Dayrate Percentage

Year 20056 Commitment Change
ATWOOD HUNTER .. ... $61,000 $245,000 302%
ATWOOD EAGLE..... .. 95,000 420,000 342%
ATWOOD FALCON ..... 82,000 200,000 144%
ATWOOD SOUTHERN

CROSS .............. 42,000 125,000 198%

ATWOOD BEACON . .. .. 66,000 133,500 102%
VICKSBURG ........... 65,000 94,500 45%
SEAHAWK ............. 45,000 68,430 52%
RICHMOND ............ 33,000 45,000 36%

The ATWOOD HUNTER is currently working
offshore Egypt at a dayrate of $1256,000 on a
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drilling program that is expected to be com-
pleted in March or early April 2006. Immediately
upon the rig completing its current drilling
program, it will commence a two year drilling
program at dayrates of $240,000 to $245,000. The
ATWOOD EAGLE has contractual commitments
offshore Australia at dayrates ranging from
$150,000 to $420,000 (except for a one-well
commitment remaining at a dayrate of $89,000)
that could extend into the fourth quarter of fiscal
year 2008. The ATWQOOD FALCON has a con-
tractual commitment offshore Malaysia at
dayrates ranging from $93,000 to $200,000 which
could extend through the first half of fiscal year
2009. This contractual commitment requires the
rig to undergo an upgrade to extend its water
depth drilling capabilities from 3,700 feet to
5,000 feet. The customer will pay $24 million of
the cost of the upgrade along with payment of a
$90,000 dayrate during the upgrade period. The
ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS is currently in a
shipyard in Malta undergoing an approximate

$7 million equipment upgrade, which is ex-
pected to be completed in early January 2006.
Following this upgrade, the rig has drilling
commitments at dayrates ranging from $70,000
to $125,000 that should extend to the end of
fiscal year 2006. Currently, the ATWOOD BEA-
CON is working offshore Vietnam at dayrates
ranging from $62,400 to $77,000 on a drilling
program that could extend into the fourth quar-
ter of fiscal year 2006. Immediately upon comple-
tion of its current drilling program, the rig will
be relocated to India to commence a 25-month
contract at dayrates ranging from $113,000 to
$133,500. The VICKSBURG has contract commit-
ments offshore Southeast Asia at dayrates rang-
ing from $82,000 to $94,500 that should extend
into the third quarter of fiscal year 2007. The
SEAHAWK, with a current dayrate of $50,000, is
scheduled to enter a shipyard in Southeast Asia
during the second quarter of fiscal year 2006 to
undergo a $16 million upgrade. Following the
upgrade, the rig will be relocated to offshore
West Africa to commence a 730 day (plus four




six-month options) drilling program at a dayrate
of $68,430. The rig could be off dayrate for
approximately five months while undergoing the
upgrade and relocation to offshore Africa. Our
only rig in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, the RICH-
MOND, has a current contract commitment at
dayrates ranging from $39,500 to $45,000 which
could extend to the end of the third guarter of
fiscal year 2006.

With the current strong market environment
supporting high equipment utilization and histor-
ical high dayrates for all of our eight drilling
units, we expect significantly improved cash
flows and operating results in fiscal year 2006
compared to fiscal year 2005. Our current total
debt to capitalization ratio [debt/(debt + equity)]
is 20%. This ratio will continue to decline until
we identify an acceptable growth opportunity.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year 2005 Versus Fiscal Year 2004

Revenues for the current fiscal year in-
creased 8% compared to the prior fiscal year. A
comparative analysis of revenues by rig for fiscal
years 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

REVENUES
(In millions)
Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 Variance
ATWOOD EAGLE . ......... $ 346 $ 304 $ 4.2
ATWQOD FALCON. ........ 29.8 260 38
ATWOOD BEACON ........ 24.2 207 3.5
GOODWYN ‘A'/NORTH
RANKIN ‘A" ............. 5.2 2.0 3.2
ATWOOD HUNTER ........ 22.1 194 27
RICHMOND ............... 11.9 9.6 23
VICKSBURG ............... 23.6 243 0.7)
ATWQOOD SOUTHERN
CROSS ................. 10.8 12.5 (1.7)
SEAHAWK ................ 13.9 18.6 4.7

$176.1 $1635 3126

During fiscal year 2005, the ATWOOD EA-
GLE was fully utilized at dayrates ranging from
$89,000 to $109,000 compared to approximately
90% utilization at the same dayrates during the
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prior fiscal year. The increase in revenues for the
ATWOOD FALCON was due to the rig being
fully utilized during fiscal year 2005 at an
average dayrate of $82,000 compared to 90%
utilization at an average dayrate of $78,000
during fiscal year 2004. The ATWOOD BEACON
had average per day revenues during fiscal year
2005 of $66,000 (which includes 100 days of
business interruption proceeds) compared to
average per day revenues during fiscal year 2004
of $62,000 (which includes 36 days of business
interruption proceeds and 30 days of zero rate
downtime immediately following its July 2004
incident which damaged its legs and derrick).
Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements for further discussion of the Atwood
Beacon incident. Since the end of fiscal year
2001, there has been a planned break in drilling
activities on the GOODWYN ‘A’ and NORTH
RANKIN ‘A’ platform rigs during which we have
provided a limited amount of maintenance ser-
vices to these platform rigs. However, during
fiscal year 2005, service activities for NORTH
RANKIN ‘A’ increased due to a planned drilling
program to commence during fiscal year 2006.
The ATWOOD HUNTER was fully utilized during
fiscal year 2005 at an average dayrate of $61,000
compared to 95% utilization during the prior
fiscal year at an average dayrate of $65,000. The
increase in revenue for the RICHMOND was due
to an increase in the average dayrate from
$26,000 during fiscal year 2004 to $33,000 during
fiscal year 2005. Revenues for the VICKSBURG
were relatively consistent for the current and
prior fiscal years while revenues for the
ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS declined due to a
decrease in the amount of earned mobilization
revenue from $4.1 million in fiscal year 2004 to
$0.8 million in fiscal year 2005 as the rig
relocated twice in the prior fiscal year and only
once during the current fiscal year. This de-
crease was partially offset by an increase in
dayrates ranging from $35,000 to $40,000 during
fiscal year 2005 compared to $30,000 to $35,000
during fiscal year 2004. The SEAHAWK was fully



utilized during the fiscal year 2004 at an average
dayrate of $60,000 compared to 85% utilization
during fiscal year 2005 at an average dayrate of
$45,000.

Contract drilling costs for the current fiscal
year increased 4% compared to the prior fiscal
year. A comparative analysis of contract drilling
costs by rig for fiscal years 2005 and 2004 is as
follows:

CONTRACT DRILLING

COSTS
(In millions)
Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 Variance
GOODWYN ‘A’/NORTH
RANKIN ‘A" ............. S 47 $ 21 $26
ATWOOD EAGLE .......... 219 207 1.2
RICHMOND ............... 8.9 7.9 1.0
SEAHAWK ................ 9.9 9.0 0.9
VICKSBURG ............... 8.8 8.3 05
ATWOOD HUNTER . ........ 11.9 12.0 0.1)
ATWOOD FALCCON . ........ 14.6 15.1 (0.5)
ATWOQOD BEACON......... 8.5 10.2 (1.7)
ATWOOD SOUTHERN
CRCSS ..., 9.1 12.3 (3.2)
OTHER ................... 4.5 1.3 32
$102.8 $98.9 $39

With the increase in service activities for
NORTH RANKIN ‘A’ during fiscal year 2005 due
to a planned drilling program to commence
during fiscal year 2006, drilling costs as well as
revenues increased from our management of this
platform rig. The increase in drilling costs for the
ATWOOD EAGLE was due to higher labor costs
due to local operating requirements offshore
Australia, its location for all of the fiscal year
2005. The increase in drilling costs for the
RICHMOND and SEAHAWK were primarily due
to higher repair and maintenance expenses
incurred on the rigs during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005 compared to the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2004. Drilling costs for the
VICKSBURG, ATWOOD HUNTER, and ATWOOD
FALCON remained relatively consistent for the
fiscal year 2005 compared to the prior fiscal year.
The decline in drilling costs for the ATWOOD
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BEACON was due to a decrease in repair and
maintenance expenses primarily resulting from
the recording of a $1.0 million insurance deducti-
ble during fiscal year 2004 related to damage
incurred during the rig’s July 2004 incident.
During most of the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2005, the ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS was
being mobilized from Southeast Asia to the
Mediterranean. Virtually all costs incurred during
a mobilization period are deferred and amortized
as an expense over the term of the new
contract. Having deferred mobilization costs at
the end of fiscal year 2005 compared to having
no such deferred costs at the end of fiscal year
2005 accounts for its decline in drilling costs.
The increase of other drilling costs during the
current fiscal year was due to a $1.0 million
reduction in the amount of insurance premium
refunds received during fiscal year 2005 when
compared to fiscal year 2004 and due to the prior
fiscal year including the settlement of a dispute
with a client which resulted in a reduction of
operation costs of $0.6 million along with various
other increases of non drilling unit specific costs.

Depreciation expense for the current fiscal
year decreased 16% as compared to the prior
fiscal year. A comparative analysis of deprecia-
tion expense by rig for fiscal years 2005 and
2004 is as follows:

DEPRECIATION
EXPENSE
(In millions)
Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 Variance
ATWQOOD SOUTHERN CROSS .. $45 $42 $03
VICKSBURG . .........c...o 0t 2.7 2.6 0.1
ATWQOD FALCON............ 2.8 2.7 0.1
ATWOOD BEACON ........... 5.2 52 —
RICHMOND .................. 0.9 0.9 —
ATWOOD EAGLE ............. 4.7 48 0.1)
ATWOOD HUNTER ........... 53 54 (0.1
SEAHAWK ... ............... 0.5 5.1 (4.6)
OTHER . ....... ... ot 0.1 0.7 (0.6)
$26.7 3316 $(49)




Effective October 1, 2004, we extended the
remaining depreciable life of the SEAHAWK from
2 months to & years. The depreciable life of this
rig was extended based upon entry into a
contract that extended the rig’s commercial
viability for up to b years, coupled with our
intent to continue marketing and operating the
rig beyond 2 months. The decrease in other
depreciation is due to certain non-rig assets
becoming fully depreciated during the last quar-
ter of the prior fiscal year and the first quarter of
fiscal year 2005. Depreciation expense for our
other units was relatively unchanged in fiscal
year 2005 as compared to fiscal year 2004.

General and administrative expenses for
fiscal year 2005 have increased 25% compared to
the prior fiscal year due to significantly increased
professional fees primarily resulting from compli-
ance requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
and due to $0.7 million of bonuses paid during
the fiscal year 2005 compared no bonus pay-
ments during fiscal year 2004. Although the level
of our outstanding debt has been reduced
significantly from the prior fiscal year, the reduc-
tion of interest expense was partially offset by
rising interest rates during fiscal year 2005.
Interest income has increased when compared to
the prior fiscal year due to higher interest rates
earned on cash balances and interest income
earned on income tax refunds.

Virtually all of our tax provision for fiscal
years 2005 and 2004 relates to taxes in foreign
jurisdictions, with fiscal year 2005 also impacted
by a $3.3 million United States tax benefit
recognized. During the current fiscal year our
provision was also offset by two other foreign
discrete items. During the first quarter of fiscal
year 2005, we received a $1.7 million tax refund
in Malaysia related to a previously reserved tax
receivable. In addition, a $1.0 million deferred
tax benefit was recognized in June 2005 due to
the filing and subsequent acceptance by the
local tax authority, of amended prior year tax
returns. On December 1, 2005, we received

16

notification from the United States Department of
Treasury that a previously reserved United States
income tax refund we had been pursuing for
over two years has been approved for payment.
Based upon this approval, we reduced our
income tax provision by the refund amount of
$3.3 million for the year ended September 30,
2005. Furthermore, during fiscal year 2005, oper-
ating income earned in certain nontaxable and
deemed profit tax jurisdictions was higher when
compared to the prior fiscal year, including
business interruption proceeds earned by the
ATWOOD BEACON in a zero tax jurisdiction for
approximately three and a half months, which
contributed to our lower effective tax rate. As a
result of these items, our effective tax rate for
fiscal year 2005 was significantly less when
compared to the prior fiscal year and the United
States statutory rate.

Fiscal Year 2004 Versus Fiscal Year 2003

Revenues for the 2004 fiscal year increased
13% compared to fiscal year 2003. A comparative
analysis of revenues by rig for fiscal years 2004
and 2003 is as follows:

REVENUES
(In millions)
Fiscal Fiscal
2004 2008  Variance
ATWOOD BEACON ......... $20.7 $ 30 $177
ATWOQOD EAGLE ........... 304 19.8 106
ATWOOD HUNTER ......... 19.4 17.2 2.2
RICHMOND . ............... 9.6 8.3 1.3
GOODWYN ‘A’/NORTH
RANKIN ‘A" ...l 2.0 1.8 0.2
VICKSBURG . ............... 24.3 25.0 0.7)
ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS 12,5 145 (2.0)
SEAHAWK . ... . ... ... ... 18.6 22.8 4.2)
ATWOOD FALCON.......... 26.0 32.4 (6.4)
$163.5 $1448 $18.7

The ATWOOD BEACON was available for
operations during the fiscal year 2004 period up
to its July accident compared to only two
months in the prior fiscal year while it was



under construction. The increase in revenue for
the ATWOOD EAGLE was due to higher
dayrates earned during fiscal year 2004 of ap-
proximately $90,000 to $110,000 compared to
fiscal year 2003 dayrate of approximately $85,000
and to higher utilization in the current fiscal year
as the rig was undergoing its upgrade and
relocating to offshore West Africa during the first
five months of the prior fiscal year. The increase
in revenue for the ATWOOD HUNTER and the
RICHMOND was due to higher average dayrates
earned during the 2004 fiscal year of $57,000 and
$27,000, respectively as compared to the prior
fiscal year average dayrates of $54,000 and
$23,000, respectively. The ATWOOD HUNTER
was also utilized for approximately 20 more days
during fiscal year 2004 as compared to fiscal year
2003. Since the end of fiscal year 2001, there has
been a planned break in drilling activities on the
GOODWYN ‘A’ and NORTH RANKIN ‘A’ plat-
form rigs. We provided a limited amount of
maintenance services to these platform rigs
during this planned idle period. The VICKSBURG
had average per day revenues of $66,000 during
fiscal year 2004 compared to $68,500 during
fiscal year 2003. The decrease in revenue for the
ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS was due to lower
dayrates earned in the current fiscal year of
$30,000 to $35,000 compared to the prior fiscal
year of $45,000 to $60,000. The impact of lower
dayrates during fiscal year 2004 was partially
offset by higher utilization of the rig during fiscal
year 2004 of 83% compared to 70% during fiscal
year 2003. During the first quarter of the 2004
fiscal year, the amortization of deferred revenue
related to the 1999 client reimbursement of the
upgrade costs for the SEAHAWK was completed,
leading to the decrease in revenue for this rig.
The decrease in revenue for the ATWOOD
FALCON was primarily due to lower dayrates
earned during the 2004 fiscal year of $70,000 to
$85,000 compared to $75,000 to $110,000 in the
prior fiscal year and also due to the rig being
idle during July 2004 while undergoing a
guarters upgrade and planned maintenance com-

pared to being fully utilized during fiscal year
2003.

In total, contract drilling costs for the 2004
fiscal year were comparable to the prior fiscal
year. A comparative analysis of contract drilling
costs by rig for fiscal years 2004 and 2003 is as
follows:

CONTRACT

DRILLING COSTS
(In millions)

Fiscal Fiscal
2004 2003 Variance

ATWOOD BEACON ........... $10.2 $ 14 $88
ATWOOD EAGLE . ............ 20.7 194 1.3

GOODWYN ‘A'/NORTH
RANKIN ‘A" .. ..o, 21 20 0.1
RICHMOND ... 7.9 82 {0.3)
SEAHAWK ................. . 9.0 97 07
ATWOOD HUNTER ........... 12.0 129 0.9)
VICKSBURG . oo 83 93 (1.0)
ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS .. 123 143 (2.0)
ATWOOD FALCON. ........... 15.1 187 (3.6)
OTHER ... oo 1.3 28 (1.3)
$98.9 $985 $04

The ATWOOD BEACON incurred operating
costs for all of fiscal year 2004 compared to only
two months in the prior fiscal year, as the rig
was under construction for most of fiscal year
2003. The recording of a $1 million insurance
deductible resulting from the damage incurred
by the ATWOOD BEACON in its July 2004
incident also contributed to an increase in costs.
The increase in daily operating costs of the
ATWOOD EAGLE from $53,200 in fiscal year
2003 to $56,700 in fiscal year 2004 was primarily
due to an increase in labor costs. Since drilling
activities were suspended on the GOODWYN ‘A’
and NORTH RANKIN ‘A’ platforms at the end of
fiscal year 2001, we provided a limited level of
maintenance services to these rigs in fiscal years
2004 and 2003. Decreases in operating costs for
the RICHMOND, SEAHAWK and ATWOOD
HUNTER were due to declines in maintenance
related costs. The decrease in drilling costs for
the VICKSBURG was due to the temporary



suspension of its contract with ExxonMobil
during the 2004 fiscal year (the contract resumed
during the first quarter of fiscal year 2005),
which in turn, suspended the amortization of
expenses related to contract specific rig improve-
ment costs incurred for this specific contract. In
addition, agent fees were lower compared to
prior fiscal year as the VICKSBURG did not incur
any agent fees while working in Thailand during
the second half of fiscal year 2004. During fiscal
2004, the ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS worked
offshore India and Malaysia where daily operat-
ing costs are lower than offshore Italy, its
primary operating area in fiscal year 2003. The
decrease in drilling costs for the ATWOOD
FALCON was due to the rig operating offshore
Australia for seven months of fiscal year 2003 at
an approximate $25,000 per day higher operating
costs compared to offshore Asia, its location for
all of fiscal year 2004. The higher operating costs
resulted from Australian labor regulations requir-
ing that marine union personnel must be em-
ployed for all offshore vessels that have
propulsion. During the period that the ATWOOD
FALCON worked offshore Australia, it was
equipped with propulsion assist, which required
the employment of marine personnel that was
not required when the rig worked offshore Asia.
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Depreciation expense for the 2004 fiscal year
decreased 16% as compared to the prior fiscal
year. A comparative analysis of depreciation
expense by rig for fiscal years 2004 and 2003 is
as follows:

DEPRECIATION
EXPENSE
(In miltions)
Fiscal Fiscal
2004 2003 Variance
ATWOOD BEACCN.......... $52 $07 $ 45
ATWOOD EAGLE ........... 4.8 3.1 1.7
SEAHAWK ................. 5.1 47 04
ATWOQOD SOUTHERN CROS 4.2 4.0 0.2
VICKSBURG ............. T 2.6 2.5 0.1
ATWOOD FALCON .......... 2.7 2.6 0.1
ATWOOD HUNTER .......... 5.4 54 —
RICHMOND ................ 0.9 1.9 (1.0)
OTHER ... ... ot 0.7 0.9 0.2
$31.6 $258 $ 58

The increase in depreciation expense for the
ATWOOD BEACON was due to a full year of
depreciation expense during fiscal year 2004
compared to only two months in fiscal year 2003
as the rig was under construction for most of the
2003 fiscal year. The increase in depreciation
expense for the ATWOOD EAGLE was also due
to a full year of depreciation expense during the
2004 fiscal year compared to only seven months
in the prior fiscal year as the rig was being
upgraded during the first five months of fiscal
year 2003. During the period when a rig is out of
service for a significant upgrade that extends its
useful life, no depreciation is recognized. Depre-
ciation expense for the SEAHAWK, ATWOQOD
SOUTHERN CROSS, VICKSBURG, ATWOOD
FALCON AND ATWQOOD HUNTER was relatively
unchanged in fiscal year 2004 as compared to
fiscal year 2003. The decrease in depreciation
expense for the RICHMOND was due to ex-
tending its remaining useful life from 2 to
5 years effective October 1, 2003. The deprecia-
ble life of this rig was extended based upon an
assessment of its commercial viability, coupled
with our intent to continue marketing and
operating the rig beyond 2 years.




General and administrative expense de-
creased 19% in fiscal year 2004 compared to
fiscal year 2003 primarily due to a reduction in
professional fees related to our worldwide re-
structuring initiative incurred in the prior fiscal
year. OQur worldwide group of congolidated enti-
ties derives substantially all of their operating
revenues from international offshore drilling of
exploratory and developmental oil and gas wells
and related support services. At the beginning of
fiscal year 2003, we initiated a restructuring of
our foreign subsidiaries and deployment of our
worldwide assets to (i) focus potential civil
litigation which may arise from future offshore
activities in foreign operations in the jurisdic-
tions of the areas of those operations,

(i) simplify our worldwide organizational struc-
ture for administrative and marketing reasons,
(iii) facilitate more efficient management and
control of business operations, and (iv) deploy
our worldwide assets and capital in a more
efficient manner among our consolidated group
of companies. In addition to these operational
efficiencies, it is expected that this restructuring
will also provide long-term tax efficiencies. A
significant part of this restructuring involved the
contribution of a majority of our

non-U.S. operations to Atwood Oceanics Pacific
Limited, a wholly-owned Cayman Islands com-
pany, which had historically served as our
offshore company for marketing, negotiating, and
performing drilling contracts outside of the
United States. At September 30, 2003, most of
our planned restructuring initiative had been
completed, with approximately $3 million of the
increase in general and administrative expenses
related to professional fees associated with this
restructuring process.

The $4.2 million increase in net interest
expense was due to having no capitalized
interest in fiscal year 2004 compared to $4.2 mil-
lion of capitalized interest in fiscal year 2003 as &
result of the completion of the upgrade program
and construction of the ATWOOD BEACON
during fiscal year 2003.
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Virtually all of our tax provision for fiscal
year 2004 related to taxes in foreign jurisdictions.
The $9.6 million decrease in provision for income
taxes in fiscal year 2004 compared to fiscal year
2003 was primarily due to the recording of a
$4.7 million deferred foreign tax liability in fiscal
year 2003 relating to Australian and Malaysian
taxes after reassessing certain tax planning
strategies in conjunction with the reorganization
of our foreign subsidiaries undertaken in fiscal
year 2003 and a reduction of $2.1 million in
current foreign tax provisions in fiscal year 2004
compared to fiscal year 2003 primarily due to tax
efficiencies resulting from the fiscal year 2003
reorganization.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Presently, we own and operate a premium,
modern fleet of eight mobile offshore drilling
units as well as manage the operations of two
operator-owned platform drilling units located in
Northwest Australia. During fiscal year 1997
through 2003, we expended approximately
$340 million on upgrading seven existing drilling
units and approximately $120 million on con-
structing an ultra-premium jack-up unit. After
expending approximately $100 million in each of
fiscal years 2001, 2002 and 2003 on our upgrades
and rig construction programs, our capital ex-
penditures declined to approximately $6.5 million
in fiscal year 2004 and $9.8 million (net of
insurance reimbursement relating to ATWOOD
BEACON repairs) in fiscal year 2005. With the
scheduled upgrades of the ATWOOD FALCON,
SEAHAWK and ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS
during fiscal year 2006, we currently expect our
capital expenditures during fiscal year 2006 to
range between $60 and $65 million. Since we
operate in a very cyclical industry, maintaining
high equipment utilization in up, as well as
down, cycles is a key factor in generating cash
to satisfy current and future obligations. For
fiscal years 2000 through 2004, net cash provided
by operating activities ranged from a low of
approximately $13.7 million in fiscal year 2003 to




a high of approximately $62.3 million in fiscal
year 2001 compared to net cash provided by
operating activities of approximately $41.1 mil-
lion for fiscal year 2005. Our operating cash flows
are primarily driven by our operating income,
which reflects dayrates and rig utilization. The
low level of net cash provided by operating
activities in fiscal year 2003 was due to a
downturn in market conditions during which we
pursued short-term contract opportunities in
high operating cost areas in order to maintain
high utilization of our fleet. Market conditions
improved in fiscal years 2004 and 2005 which
enabled us to have higher cash flows and
earnings in these years compared to fiscal year
2003. Due to the significant increase in future
dayrate commitments at histerically high levels,
we have pursued longer-term contract opportuni-
ties for some of our drilling units. We currently
have approximately 90% and 70% of our availa-
ble operating rig days committed for fiscal years
2006 and 2007, respectively. With the current
historical high dayrate commitments on all eight
of our drilling units, we anticipate significant
improvement in cash flows and earnings during
fiscal years 2006 and 2007. Other than our
expected capital expenditures of $60 million to
$65 million for fiscal year 2006, the only addi-
tional cash commitment for fiscal year 20086,
outside of funding current rig operations, is our
required quarterly repayments under the term
portion of our senior secured Credit Facility
which will total $36 million for fiscal year 2006.
We expect to generate more than sufficient cash
flows from operations to satisfy these obligations.

In October 2004, we sold in a public offering
1,175,000 shares of our common stock at an
effective net price (before expenses) of $45.83 for
net proceeds of approximately $53.6 million. We
used these proceeds and cash on hand to repay
the $55 million outstanding under the revolving
portion of our Credit Facility. As of Septem-
ber 30, 2006, we only have $30 million outstand-
ing under the term portion of our Credit Facility,
with approximately $39 million of available bor-
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rowing capacity under the revolving portion of
our Credit Facility. We are in compliance with all
financial covenants at September 30, 2005 and
expect to remain in compliance with all financial
covenants during fiscal year 2008. Further, at all
times during fiscal year 2003, 2004 and 2005
when we were required to determine compliance
with our financial covenants, we were in compli-
ance with those covenants. Aside from the
financial covenants, no other provisions exist in
the Credit Facility that could result in accelera-
tion of the April 1, 2008 maturity date.

At September 30, 2005, the collateral for our
Credit Facility consists primarily of preferred
mortgages on all eight of our active drilling units
(with an aggregate net book value at Septem-
ber 30, 2005 totaling approximately $380 million). I
We are not required to maintain compensating
balances; however, we are required to pay a fee
of approximately 0.70% per annum on the un-
used portion of the revolving loan facility and
certain other administrative costs.

In October 2005, we sold our semisubmer-
sible hull, SEASCQOUT, for $10 million (net after
certain expenses) and our spare 15,000 P.S1.
BOP Stack for approximately $15 million. The
gain on the sale of these assets of approximately
$9 million will be recorded in the first quarter of
fiscal year 2006. The $25 million in cash from
these sales has increased our current cash and
cash equivalents on hand to approximately
$40 million as of November 30, 2005.

Qur portfolio of accounts receivable is com-
prised of major international corporate entities
with stable payment experience. Historically, we
have not encountered significant difficulty in
collecting receivables and typically do not re-
quire collateral for our receivables. The insurance
receivable of $0.6 million at September 30, 2005
relates to repairs to be made to the ATWOOD
BEACON. During fiscal year 2006, we plan to
complete the remaining work to restore the rig
to its pre-incident condition at which time we
expect to collect the remaining $0.6 million




insurance receivable associated therewith, We
have a $0.2 million allowance for doubtful ac-
counts at September 30, 2005 due to a delin-
quent account with one specific client.

COMMITMENTS

The following table summarizes our obliga-
tions and commitments (in thousands) at Sep-
tember 30, 2005:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2006 2007 2008
Long-Term Debt ........ $36,000  $36,000  $18,000
Operating Leases ....... 1,232 863 175
$37,232  $36,863 $18,175

Excluded from the above table is interest
associated with borrowings under our Credit
Facility because the applicable interest rate is
variable. The principal amount outstanding
under our Credit Facility included in the above
table is $90 million which currently bears inter-
est at a rate of approximately 5.25%.

Critical Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policies are included
in Note 2 to our consoclidated financial state-
ments for the year ended September 30, 2005.
These policies, along with the underlying as-
sumptions and judgments made by management
in their application, have a significant impact on
our consolidated financial statements. We iden-
tify our most critical accounting policies as those
that are the most pervasive and important to the
portrayal of our financial position and results of
operations, and that require the most difficult,
subjective and/or complex judgments by man-
agement regarding estimates about matters that
are inherently uncertain. Our most critical ac-
counting policies are those related to revenue
recognition, property and equipment, impairment
of assets, income taxes, and employee stock-
based compensation.

We account for the drilling and management
contract revenue in accordance with the terms
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of the underlying drilling or management con-
tract. These contracts generally provide that
revenue is earned and recognized on a daily rate
(i.e. “dayrate’’) basis and dayrates are typically
earned for a particular level of service over the
life of a contract. Dayrate contracts can be for a
specified period of time or the time required to
drill a specified well or number of wells. Reve-
nues from dayrate drilling operations, which are
classified under contract drilling services, are
recognized on a per day basis as the work
progresses. In addition, lump-sum fees received
as compensation for the cost of relocating
drilling rigs from one major operating area to
another at commencement of the drilling con-
tract are recognized as earned on a straight-line
method over the term of the related drilling
contract, as are the dayrates associated with
such contract. However, lump-sum fees received
upon termination of a drilling contract are
recognized as earned during the period termina-
tion occurs. In addition, we defer the mobiliza-
tion costs relating to moving a drilling rig to a
new area and amortize such costs on a straight-
line basis over the life of the applicable drilling
contract as well.

We currently operate eight active offshore
drilling units. These assets are premium equip-
ment and should provide many years of quality
service. At September 30, 2005, the carrying
value of our property and equipment totaled
$390.8 million, which represents 79% of our total
assets. This carrying value reflects the applica-
tion of our property and eguipment accounting
policies, which incorporate estimates, assump-
tions and judgments by management relative to
the useful lives and salvage values of our units.
Once a rig is placed in service, it is depreciated
on the straight-line method over its estimated
useful life, with depreciation discontinued only
during the period when a drilling unit is out of
service while undergoing a significant upgrade
that extends its useful life. The estimated useful
lives of our drilling units and related equipment
range from 3 years to 25 years and our salvage



values are generally based on 5% of capitalized
costs. Any future increases in our estimates of
useful lives or salvage values will have the effect
of decreasing future depreciation expense in
future years and spreading the expense to later
years. Any future decreases in our useful lives or
salvage values will have the effect of accelerat-
ing future depreciation expense.

We evaluate the carrying value of our
property and equipment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of such assets may be impaired. Asset impair-
ment evaluations are, by nature, highly subijec-
tive. Operations of our drilling equipment are
subject to the offshore drilling requirements of oil
and gas exploration and production companies
and agencies of foreign governments. These
requirements are, in turn, subject to fluctuations
in government policies, world demand and price
for petroleum products, proved reserves in rela-
tion to such demand and the extent to which
such demand can be met from onshore sources.
The critical estimates which result from these
dynamics include projected utilization, dayrates,
and operating expenses, each of which impact
our estimated future cash flows. Over the last
ten years, our equipment utilization rate has
averaged approximately 90%; however, if a drill-
ing unit incurs significant idle time or receives
dayrates below operating costs, its carrying
value could become impaired. The estimates,
assumptions and judgments used by manage-
ment in the application of our property and
equipment and asset impairment policies reflect
both historical experience and expectations re-
garding future industry conditions and opera-
tions. The use of different estimates,
assumptions and judgments, especially those
involving the useful lives of our rigs and vessels
and expectations regarding future industry con-
ditions and operations, would likely result in
materially different carrying values of assets and
results of operations.
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We conduct operations and earn income in
numerous foreign countries and are subject to
the laws of taxing jurisdictions within those
countries, as well as United States federal and
state tax laws. At September 30, 2005, we have
a $17.1 million net deferred income tax liability.
This balance reflects the application of our
income tax accounting policies in accordance
with statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards No. 109, ""Accounting for Income Taxes’.
Such accounting policies incorporate estimates,
assumptions and judgments by management
relative to the interpretation of applicable tax
laws, the application of accounting standards,
and future levels of taxable income. The esti-
mates, assumptions and judgments used by
managemernt in connection with accounting for
income taxes reflect both historical experience
and expectations regarding future industry con-
ditions and operations. Changes in these esti-
mates, assumptions and judgments could result
in materially different provisions for deferred and
current income taxes.

Through fiscal year 2005, we measured
compensation expense for our employee stock-
based compensation plans using the intrinsic
value method prescribed by Accounting Princi-
ples Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees and provide pro
forma disclosures of the effect on net income
and earnings per share as if the fair value-based
method had been applied in measuring compen-
sation expense. We elected to follow APB Opin-
ion No. 2b because, as further discussed at
Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, the alternative fair value accounting
provided for under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, requires use of op-
tion valuation models that were not developed
for use in valuing employee stock options and
employee stock purchase plan shares. Under
APB Opinion No. 25, when the exercise price of
employees’ stock options equals the market price
of the underlying stock on the date of the grant,
no compensation expense is recognized. As




discussed below, effective October 1, 2005, we
changed how we measure compensation ex-
pense for our employee stock-based compensa-
tion plans.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board ('FASB"’) issued SFAS No. 123
(Revised 2004), '"Share-Based Payment’”’

(""SFAS 123(R}"). This Statement revises

SFAS No. 123 by eliminating the option to
account for employee stock options under APB
Opinion No. 25 and generally requires companies
to recognize the cost of employee services
received in exchange for awards of equity
instruments based on the fair value on the grant
date of those awards (the “‘fair-value-based’
method). SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for public
entities as of the beginning of their first fiscal
year beginning after June 15, 2005. Accordingly,
effective October 1, 2005 we adopted and imple-
mented SFAS 123(R). We will use the modified
prospective method without restatement of prior
periods. The impact of adopting SFAS 123(R) will
be to record expense for previously-issued but
unvested employee stock options and for any
employee stock options that we issue in the
future. We expect the dollar impact on our
financial statements to be generally consistent
with the impact disclosed in the pro forma
disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, begin-
ning with the first quarter of fiscal year 2006 (see
Note 2 in our consolidated financial statements).

In May 2005, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections — a replacement of APB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3," which is
effective for reporting a change in accounting
principle for fiscal years beginning after Decem-
ber 15, 2005. This Statement changes the report-
ing of a change in accounting principle to
require retrospective application to prior periods’
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financial statements, except for explicit transition
provisions provided for in new accounting pro-
nouncements or existing accounting pronounce-
ments, including those in the transition phase
when SFAS No. 154 becomes effective. We will
apply SFAS No. 154 as required.

DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk, including
adverse changes in interest rates and foreign
currenicy exchange rates as discussed below.

Interest Rate Risk

All of the $90 million of long-term debt
outstanding at September 30, 2005, was floating
rate debt. As a result, our annual interest costs
in fiscal year 2006 will fluctuate based on
interest rate changes. Because the interest rate
on our long-term debt is a floating rate, the fair
value of our long-term debt approximated carry-
ing value as of September 30, 2005. The impact
on annual cash flow of a 10% change in the
floating rate (approximately 52 basis points)
would be approximately $0.5 million, which we
believe to be immaterial. We did not have any
open derivative contracts relating to our floating
rate debt at September 30, 2005.

Foreign Currency Risk

Certain of our subsidiaries have monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in a
currency other than their functional currencies.
Based on September 30, 2005 amounts, a de-
crease of 10% in the foreign currency value
relative to the United States dollar from the year-
end exchange rates would not result in a
material foreign currency transaction loss. Thus,
we consider our current risk exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate movements, based on
net cash flows, to be immaterial. We did not
have any open derivative contracts relating to
foreign currencies at September 30, 2005.




MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. The Company's internal control over financial reporting was designed by management, under the
supervision of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and
includes those policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

(iil) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of September 30, 2005. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internel Control-
Integrated Framework.

Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework,
management has concluded that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2005. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent registered public
accounting firm, has audited our assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2005, as stated in their report included under Item 8 herein.

ATWOOD OCEANICS, INC.

by

o %xr»\ M.,
John R. Irwin James M. Holland
Director, President Senior Vice President and
and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Atwood Oceanics, Inc.

We have completed an integrated audit of Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and subsidiaries’ (''the
Company'’') 2005 consolidated financial statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as
of September 30, 2005 and audits of its 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions,
based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated
statements of operations, of cash flows and of changes in shareholders’ equity present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company at September 30, 2005 and 2004, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 20056 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that the Company maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2005 based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponscring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria.
Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’'s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s
assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over
financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’'s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

25




A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Decaelatloogy Lopars LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
December 13, 2005
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Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30,

(In thousands) 2005 2004
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents .. .. ...ttt S 18,982 § 16416
Accounts receivable, net of an allowance of $189 and $-0- at September 30,

2005 and 2004, respectively . ... 39,865 32,475
Income tax 1eceivable .. ... . 3,278 —
Insurance receivable. . .. . e 550 25,433
Inventories of materials and supplies ... 15,640 12,648
Deferred taX ASS8ES . o v it 3,080 280
Prepaid expenses and deferred CoStS . ... 10,658 5,704

Total CUITENt ASSELS . . . oo e 02,053 92,966

NET PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT . ... . e 390,778 401,141
ASSET HELD FOR SALE . .. e 9,017 —
DEFERRED COSTS AND OTHER ASSETS. ... .. i 3,846 4,829
$495,694 $498,936
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of notes payable. . ... ... ... . . $ 36,000 $ 36,000
Accounts payable .. .. e 6,473 9,398
Accrued Habilitles . . oo 11,088 13,822
Deferred Credits. . .o 2,598 833
Total Current Liabilities . . ... ... 56,159 60,053
LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current maturities: ......... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 54,000 145,000
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES:
Deferred INCOME LaXES . .. .ttt e 20,140 18,930
Deferred credits and other. ... ... . . . 3,258 3,364
23,398 22,294
COMMITMENTS AND CONTENGENCIES (SEE NOTE 10)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, no par value; 1,000 shares authorized, none outstanding ... .. — —
Common stock, $1 par value, 20,000 shares authorized with 15,341 and 13,873

issued and outstanding at September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. ... .. 15,341 13,873
Paid-in capital . . ... ..o 120,986 57,917
Retained eaImings . . ..o it 225,810 199,799

Total Shareholders’ EQUity. ... ... i e 362,137 271,589

$495,694 $498,936

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003
REVENUES:
Contract drilling . .. ..ot S168,500 $161,074 $144,765
Business interruption proceeds . .. ... 7,656 2,380 —
178,156 163,454 144,765
COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Contract drilling . ..o e e 102,849 98,936 98,500
DepreCiation . v 28,735 31,582 25,758
General and administrative . ... .. 14,245 11,389 14,015
143,829 141,907 138,273
OPERATING INCOME . ..t e e e e 32,327 21,547 6,492
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest . .................... (7,352) (9,202) (5,014)
Interest NCOME . . . ... e e e 633 57 158
(6,719) (9,145) (4,856)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES ... i 25,608 12,402 1,636
PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXES .. ... ..o (403) 4815 14,438
NET INCOME (LOSS) o ottt et e e S 26,011 $ 7587 $(12,802)
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:
BaSIC « vt $§ 171 $ 055 $ (0.92
Diluted. . ..o 1.67 0.b4 (0.92)
AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING
BaSIC o 15,206 13,859 13,846
Diluted . .. e 15,610 14,032 13,846

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For Years Ended September 30,

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (I08S) . . .ot S 26,011 $ 7587 § (12,802)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
BT o)=L o4 - U o) « RO O 26,735 31,582 25,758
Amortization of debt issuance costs ... ... 804 711 2,101
Amortization of deferred Items ... ... e 5389 603 185
Deferred federal income tax provision (benefit) ........................ (1,580) (2,040) 5,350
(Gain) 1085 00 5818 Of @SSELS . & ot o ottt e e — 163 (421)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable . . ... oo i (7,320) 1,667 (5,200)
(Increase) decrease in insurance receivable ....... ... o i . 9,133 (9,133) —
Increase in income tax receivable ... ... e (3,278) — —
INCTease N INVEITOTY .« ..ttt et et ettt e e e (2,839) (65) (3,449)
(Increase) decrease in deferred costs and otherassets.................. 1,279 (970) (94)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ... ..ot (2,925) (487) 4780
Increase {(decrease) in accrued liabilities . ... ... . i i (2,734) 4971 (4,958)
Increase (decrease) in deferred credits and other liabilities .. ............ (108) (3,678) 4,051
Net mobilization fees and credits . ... oottt (4,888) (5,311) (1,062)
Tax benefit from the exercise of stock options .. ....................... 2,250 75 58
UL . o 21 (62) (623)
15,081 18,026 26,476
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities ......... ... ... .. ... .... 41,092 25,613 13,674
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures . . .. .o vt (25,563) (6,527) (101,819)
Collection of insurance receivable ..... ... ... .. . i 15,750 — —_
Proceeds from sale of assets ... .. ... — — 1,131
O ROT o — — (23)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities . .......covvuin i n. (2,813) (6,627) (100,711)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from credit facilities . ... ... e 10,000 — 264 500
Principal payments on debt . ... .ooo (101,000) (24,000) (179,623)
Debt 1Ssuance Costs Paid .. oo vttt — (681) (4,122)
Proceeds from common stock offering . ... ... o 53,607 — —_
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ......... ... i 8,680 460 78
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities ................... (28,713) (24,221) 80,933
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ......... $ 2566 $ (5135 $ (6104
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, at beginning of period ... ............... S 16,416 $21551 $ 27,655
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, at end of period ....................... $ 18,982 $16416 $ 21,651
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: »
Cash paid during the year for domestic and foreign income taxes ......... § 5977 $ 5549 $ 7914
Cash paid during the year for interest, net of amounts capitalized ......... $ 7,706 $ 9208 $ 4,003

Non-cash Activities:
Increase in receivable related to reduction in value of the ATWOOD
BEAC O L o e ... 8 —  $16,300

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Total
Commeon Stock Paid-in Retained Stockholders’
(In thousands) Shares  Amount Capital Earnings Equity
September 30,2002 ............... ... ....... 13,845 $13,845 § 57274 $205,014 $276,133
Net 0SS o v e e — — — (12,802) (12,802)
Exercise of employee stock options ............ 6 6 72 — 78
Tax benefit from exercise of employee stock
o) o] (o) o= SN — — 58 — 58
September 30, 2003.......................... 13,851 $13,851 $ 57,404 $192212 $263,467
Net INCOME . ..o oo e — — — 7,587 7,587
Exercise of employee stock options . ........... 22 22 438 — 460
Tax benefit from exercise of employee stock
ODLIONS .« v e et e et e — — 75 — 75
September 30,2004 .......................... 13,873 $13873 § 57,917 $199,799 $271,689
Netincome. ... ... e — — — 26,011 26,011
Exercise of employee stock options . ........... 293 293 8,387 — 8,680
Common stock offering....................... 1,175 1,175 52,432 — 53,607
Tax benefit from exercise of employee stock
OPLIONS ..t — — 2,250 — 2,250
September 30,2005.......................... 15,341 $15341 $120,986 $225,810 $362,137

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Atwood Oceanics, Inc., together with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to herein as
“we,”" “our’”’ or the “Company’’), is engaged in
offshore drilling and completion of exploratory
and developmental oil and gas wells and related
support, management and consulting services
principally in international locations. Presently,
we own and operate a premium, modern fleet of
eight mobile offshore drilling units and are
involved in maintenance of two operator-owned
platform drilling units located in Northwest Aus-
tralia for future drilling programs. Currently, we
are involved in active operations in the territorial
waters of Australia, Malaysia, Myanmar, Viet-
nam, Egypt, and the United States.

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation —

The consolidated financial statements in-
clude the accounts of Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and
all of its domestic and foreign subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transac-
tions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and cash equivalents —

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
in banks and highly liquid debt instruments,
which mature within three months of the date of
purchase.

Foreign exchange —

The United States dollar is the functional
currency for all areas of our operations. Accord-
ingly, monetary assets and liabilities denomi-
nated in foreign currency are converted to
United States dollars at the rate of exchange in
effect at the end of the fiscal year, items of
income and expense are remeasured at average
monthly rates, and property and equipment and
other nonmonetary amounts are remeasured at
historical rates. Gains and losses on foreign
currency transactions and remeasurements are
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included in contract drilling costs in our consoli-
dated statements of operations. We recorded a
foreign exchange gain of $0.1 million during
fiscal year 2005, no foreign exchange gain or loss
during fiscal year 2004 and recorded a foreign
exchange loss of $0.9 million in fiscal year 2003,

Accounts Receivable —

We record trade accounts receivable at the
amount we invoice our customers. These ac-
counts do not bear interest. Our portfolio of
accounts receivable is comprised of major inter-
national corporate entities and government orga-
nizations with stable payment experience.
Historically, our uncollectible accounts receivable
have been immaterial, and typically, we do not
require collateral for our receivables. We provide
an allowance for uncollectible accounts, as nec-
essary, on a specific identification basis. We
have a $0.2 million allowance for doubtful ac-
counts at September 30, 2005 due to a delin-
quent account with one specific client. We had
no allowance for doubtful accounts at Septem-
ber 30, 2004.

Insurance receivable —

As of September 30, 2005 and 2004, we had
an insurance receivable of $0.6 million and
$25.4 million, respectively, related to a claim filed
as a result of damage sustained by the
ATWOOD BEACON in July 2004 while position-
ing for a well offshore Indonesia. We expect to
collect the remaining receivable during fiscal
year 2006. See Note 3 for further discussion
regarding the ATWOOD BEACON incident.

Inventories of Material and Supplies —

Inventories consist of spare parts, material
and supplies held for consumption and are
stated principally at the lower of average cost or
market, net of reserves for excess and obsolete
inventory of $1.8 million and $1.9 million at
September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.



Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Cont.)

Income taxes —

We account for income taxes in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards (“SFAS"’) No. 109 ‘‘Accounting for Income
Taxes”. Under SFAS No. 109, deferred income
taxes are recorded to reflect the tax conse-
quences on future years of differences between
the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their
financial reporting amounts at each year-end
given the provisions of enacted tax laws in each
respective jurisdiction. Deferred tax assets are
reduced by a valuation allowance when, based
upon management's estimates, it is more likely
than not that a portion of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized in a future period.

Property and equipment —

Property and equipment are recorded at
cost. Interest costs related to property under
construction are capitalized as a component of
construction costs. With our upgrades and new
rig construction programs completed at the end
of fiscal year 2003, we had no capitalized
interest during fiscal years 2005 or 2004. Interest
capitalized during fiscal 2003 was $3.3 million.

Once a 1ig is placed in service, it is
depreciated on the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life, with depreciation discon-
tinued only during the period when a drilling
unit is out of service while undergoing a
significant upgrade that extends its useful life.
Our estimated useful lives of our various classifl-
cations of assets are as follows:

Years
Drilling vessels and related equipment ......... 5-25
Dril pipe .. oo 3
Furmniture and other........... ... ... ... ... 3-10

Maintenance, repairs and minor replace-
ments are charged against income as incurred;
major replacements and upgrades are capitalized
and depreciated over the remaining useful life of
the asset as determined upon completion of the
work. The cost and related accumulated depreci-
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ation of assets sold, retired or otherwise dis-
posed are removed from the accounts at the
time of dispositicn, and any resulting gain or
loss is reflected in the Consoclidated Statements
of Operations for the applicable pericd.

Impairment of property and equipment —

We periodically evaluate our property and
equipment to determine that their net carrying
value is not in excess of their net realizable
value. These evaluations are performed when we
have sustained significant declines in utilization
and dayrates and recovery is not contemplated
in the near future. We consider a number of
factors such as estimated future cash flows,
appraisals and current market value analysis in
determining an asset’s fair value. Assets are
written down to their fair value if the carrying
amount of the asset is not recoverable and
egxceeds its fair value.

Deferred drydocking costs —

We defer the costs of scheduled drydocking
and charge such costs to expense over the
period to the next scheduled drydccking (nor-
mally 30 months). At September 30, 2005 and
2004, deferred drydocking costs totaling $0.7 mil-
lion and $0.8 million, respectively, were included
in Deferred Costs and Other Assets in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Revenue recognition —

We account for drilling and management
contract revenue in accordance with the term of
the underlying drilling or management contract.
These contracts generally provide that revenue is
earned and recognized on a daily basis. We
provide crewed rigs to customers on a daily rate
(i.e. "dayrate’’) basis. Dayrate contracts can be
for a specified pericd of time or the time
required to drill a specified well cr number of
wells. Revenues from dayrate drilling operations,
which are classified under contract drilling ser-
vices, are recognized on a per day basis as the
work progresses. In addition, business interrup-




Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Cont.)

tion proceeds are also recognized on a per day
basis. See Note 3 for further discussion of the
ATWOOD BEACON incident.

Deferred fees and costs related to mobiliza-
tion periods —

Lump-sum fees received as compensation
for the cost of relocating drilling rigs from one
major operating area to another at commence-
ment of the drilling contract are recognized as
earned on a straight-line method over the term
of the related drilling contract, as are the
dayrates associated with such contract. How-
everl, lump-sum fees received upon termination
of a drilling contract are recognized as earned
during the period termination occurs. In addi-
tion, we defer the mobilization costs relating to
moving a drilling rig to a new area and amortize
such costs on a straight-line basis over the life of
the applicable drilling contract as well. Contract
revenues and drilling costs are reported in the
Statements of Operations at their gross amounts.

At September 30, 2005 and 2004, deferred
mobilization revenues totaled $2.6 million and
$0.8 million, respectively, and deferred mobiliza-
tion costs totaled $7.0 million and $0.4 million,
respectively. Deferred mobilization revenues and
deferred mobilization costs are classified as
current or long-term in the accompanying Con-
solidated Balance Sheets based on the expected
term of the applicable drilling contracts.

Earnings per common share —

Basic and diluted earnings per share have
been computed in accordance with
SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share'’ (EPS).
"Basic”” EPS excludes dilution and is computed
by dividing net income {loss) by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding
for the period. "'Diluted’’ EPS reflects the issu-
ance of additional shares in connection with the
assumed conversion of stock options.
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The computation of basic and diluted earn-
ings per share under SFAS No. 128 for each of
the past three fiscal years is as follows (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Per Share
Amount

Net Income

(Loss) Shares

Fiscal 2005:
Basic earnings per
share
Effect of dilutive
securities —
Stock options .. ..

$ 26,011 15,206 $1.71

404 {0.04)

Diluted earnings per
share

Fiscal 2004:
Basic earnings per
share
Effect of dilutive
securities —
- Stock options . . ..

$ 26,011 15,610 $167

$ 7587 13,859 $0.55

173 (0.01)

Diluted earnings per

share 3 7,587 14,032 30.54

Fiscal 2003:
Basic earnings (loss)
per share........
Effect of dilutive
securities —
Stock options .. ..

$(12,802) 13,846 $(0.92)

Diluted earnings

{loss) per share. . . $(12,802) 13,846 $(0.92)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share
for the years ended September 30, 2004 and
2003 excludes consideration of shares of com-
mon shares which may be issued in connection
with outstanding stock options of 101,275 and
825,000, respectively, because such options were
antidilutive. These options could potentially di-
lute basic EPS in the future. For the year ended
September 30, 2005, there were no antidilutive
options.

Stock-Based compensation —

Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards ("“SFAS") No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation’ allows companies the




Atwood Oceanics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Cont.)

choice of either using a fair value method of
accounting for options, which would result in
expense recognition for all options granted, or
using an intrinsic value method as prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board (“APB"’) Opinion
No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ-
ees'’, with pro forma disclosure of the impact on
net income (loss) of using the fair value option
expense recognition method.

During fiscal years 2005, 2004, and 2003, we
applied the recognition and measurement princi-
ples of APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpre-
tations. Accordingly, no compensation costs
were recognized in net income from the granting
of options pursuant to our stock incentive plans,
as all options granted under those plans had an
exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant.
See Note 6 for additional information related to
our stock incentive plans.

Had compensation costs been determined
based on the fair value at the grant dates
consistent with the method of SFAS No. 123, our
net income and earnings per share would have
been reduced to the pro forma amounts indi-
cated below (in thousands, except for per share
amounts):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss), as
reported. . ............. $26,011 $ 7,587 $(12,802)
Deduct: Total stock-based
employee compensation
expense determined
under fair value based
method for all awards,
net of related tax effects (1,671) (2,517) (2,150)
Pro Forma, net income
(loss). ... $24,340 $5070 $(14,952)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic — as reported .. .... $ 171 $ 055 $ (0.92)
Basic —pro forma . ....... $ 160 $ 037 $ (1.08)
Diluted — as reported . . . . . S 167 $ 054 $ (092)
Diluted — pro forma ...... S 156 $ 036 $ (1.08)

The fair value of grants made for the past
three fiscal years were estimated on the date of
grant using the Black-Sholes Option Pricing
model with the following weighted-average
assumptions:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2005 2004 2003
Risk-Free Interest Rate ... .. 4.27% 4.38% 3.58%
Expected Volatility ......... 35.00% 50.00% 50.00%
Expected Life (Years) . ...... 6 6 8
Dividend Yield............. None None Nene

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB'') issued SFAS No. 123
(Revised 2004), ‘‘Share-Based Payment’”’

(““SFAS 123(R)"). This Statement revises

SFAS No. 123 by eliminating the option to
account for employee stock options under APB
No. 25 and generally requires companies to
recognize the cost of employee services received
in exchange for awards of equity instruments
based on the fair value on the grant date of
those awards (the ‘'fair-value-based’’ method).
SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for public entities as
of the beginning of their first fiscal year begin-
ning after June 15, 2005. Accordingly, effective
October 1, 2005, we adopted and implemented
SFAS 123(R). We will use the modified prospec-
tive method without restatement of prior periods.
The impact of adopting SFAS 123(R) will be to
record expense for previously-issued but un-
vested employee stock options and for any
employee stock options that we issue in the
future. We expect the dollar impact on our
financial statements to be generally consistent
with the impact previously disclosed above in
the pro forma disclosure requirements of

SFAS No. 123, beginning with the first quarter of
fiscal year 2006.

Use of estimates —

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires manage-
ment to make extensive use of estimates and
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assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of reve-
nues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of property and equipment by
classification is as follows (in thousands):

September 30,

2005 2004
Drilling vessels and related
equipment
COoSt oo ve i $ 624,118 $ 608,584
Accumulated depreciation . .. (236,736) (211,544)
Net book value ........... 387,382 397,040
Drill Pipe
Cost vt 10,742 10,240
Accumulated depreciation . .. (8,407) (7,259)
Net book value ........... 2,335 2,981
Furniture and other
Cost ... 7,395 7,635
Accumulated depreciation . .. (6,334) (6,515)
Net bock value ........... 1,061 1,120
NET PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT.............. $ 390,778  $ 401,141

ATWOOD HUNTER —

In 1997, the ATWOOD HUNTER was initially
upgraded to extend its water-depth drilling
capabilities to 3,600 feet at an aggregate cost of
approximately $40 million. From June 2001 to
November 2001, the ATWOOD HUNTER was in
a shipyard in the United States undergoing
another upgrade which included among other
improvements, the extension of its water-depth
drilling capacity to 5,000 feet for certain environ-
mental conditions, new 120 bed living quarters,
a new high capacity crane and the enhancement
of its completion and sub-sea tree handling
capabilities. The aggregate cost of this upgrade
and improvements was approximately
$58 million.

35

ATWOOD EAGLE —

In January 2000, the water depth drilling
capability of the ATWOOD EAGLE was in-
creased from 2,500 feet to 3,300 feet at a cost of
approximately $8 million. From April 2002 to late
November 2002, the ATWOOD EAGLE was in a
shipyard in Greece undergoing another upgrade
which included among other improvements, the
extensions of its water-depth drilling capacity to
5,000 feet, new 120 bed living quarters, two new
high capacity cranes and the enhancement of its
completion and sub-sea tree handling capabili-
ties. The aggregate cost of this upgrade and
improvements was approximately $90 million.

RICHMOND —

During August and September 2000, the
RICHMOND was upgraded and refurbished at an
aggregate cost of approximately $7 million. The
upgrade included, among other improvements,
the installation of suction piles and the refurbish-
ment of its living quarters.

ATWOOD FALCON —

The ATWOOD FALCON was upgraded in
1998, at a cost of approximately $45 million.

SEAHAWK —

The SEAHAWK was upgraded in 1999 at
cost of approximately $22 million.

VICKSBURG —

In 1598, the VICKSBURG was refurbished
and upgraded at a cost of approximately
$35 million.

ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS —

In 1997, the ATWOOD SOUTHERN CROSS
was refurbished and upgraded to achieve
2,000 feet water-depth drilling capabilities at an
aggregate cost of approximately $35 million.
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ATWOOD BEACON —

In July 2001, we entered into a vessel
construction agreement to construct an ultra-
premium jack-up drilling unit in Singapore. The
construction and commission of the drilling unit
was completed in July 2003 at a total cost,
including owner furnished equipment and capi-
talized interest, of approximately $120 million
and subseguently was placed into service in
August 2003,

The ATWOOD BEACON incurred damage to
all three legs and its derrick while positioning for
a well offshore of Indonesia in July 2004. The rig
and its damaged legs were transported to the
builder's shipyard in Singapore for inspections
and repairs. At September 30, 2004, the book
basis of the ATWOOD BEACON was reduced by
$16.3 million which was the estimated reduction
in value caused by the incident. An insurance
receivable totaling $25.4 million was recorded for
such estimated damage, as well as estimated
recovery costs and business interruption loss
incurred through September 30, 2004. We also
had loss of hire insurance coverage of
$70,000 per day up to 180 days, which began
after a 30-day waiting period commencing
July 28, 2004. Revenue recognized from this
insurance coverage totaled approximately
$2.4 million in fiscal year 2004 and $7.7 million in
fiscal year 2005 and is reflected as business
interruption proceeds on the Consolidated State-
ment of Operations.

As of September 30, 2005, all costs incurred
to date and business interruption proceeds
earned related to this incident had been reim-
bursed by the insurance carrier. During fiscal
year 2006, we plan to complete the remaining
work to restore the rig to its pre-incident
condition at which time we expect to collect the
remaining $0.6 million insurance receivable asso-
ciated therewith.
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NOTE 4 — DEBT
LONG-TERM DEBT —

A summary of long-term debt is as follows
{(in thousands):

September 30,
2005 2004

Credit facility, bearing interest
(market adjustable) at
approximately 5.25% per annum
at September 30, 2005

Less — current maturities

$90,000 $181,000
36,000 36,000

$54,000 $145,000

During fiscal year 2003, we executed a
$225 million senior secured credit facility, or the
Credit Facility, with four industry banks to
reflnance our prior existing indebtedness and to
provide for on-going working capital and general
corporate needs. Later in fiscal year 2003, the
Credit Facility was increased to $250 million.
The Credit Facility consists of a 5-year $150 mil-
lion amortizing term loan facility and a 5-year
$100 million non-amortizing revolving loan facil-
ity. The term loan facility requires quarterly
payments of $9 million until maturity on April 1,
2008. The Credit Facility permits prepayment of
principal at anytime without incurring a penalty.
At September 30, 2004, we had $55 million
outstanding under the revolving loan facility and
$126 million outstanding under the term loan
facility. In October 2004, we repaid the $55 mil-
lion outstanding under the revelving loan facility
from proceeds received from the public offering
of 1,175,000 shares of our common stock and
cash on hand (refer to Note 6). At September 30,
2005, we had $30 million outstanding under the
term loan facility and none outstanding under
the revolving loan facility. The collateral at
September 30, 2005 for the Credit Facility con-
sists primarily of preferred mortgages on all eight
of our active drilling units {(with an aggregate
net book value at September 30, 2005 totaling
approximately $380 million). We are not required
to maintain compensating balances; however,
we are required to pay a fee of approximately
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0.70% per annum on the unused portion of the
revolving loan facility and certain cther adminis-
trative costs.

The Credit Facility contains financial cove-
nants, including but not limited to, requirements
for maintaining certain net worth and other
financial ratios, and restrictions on disposing of
any material assets, paying cash dividends or
repurchasing any of our outstanding common
stock and incurring any additional indebtedness
in excess of $3 millicn. In November 2003, the
Credit Facility was amended, effective as of
September 30, 2003, to redefine the calculation
of the ratio of outstanding debt to earnings,
before interest, income taxes and depreciation.
The November amendment increased the per-
mitted ratio levels from 5.75 to 6.25 at Decem-
ber 31, 2003, reducing to 550 at March 31 and
June 30, 2004, 4.00 at September 30, 2004 and
3.00 thereafter. We are in compliance with all
financial covenants at September 30, 2005 and
expect to remain in compliance with all financial
covenants during fiscal year 2006. Further, at all
times during fiscal year 2003, 2004 and 2005
when we were required to determine compliance
with our financial covenants, we were in compli-
ance with the covenants. Aside from the finan-
cial covenants, no other provisions exist in the
Credit Facility that could result in acceleration of
the April 1, 2008 maturity date.

The Credit Facility also supports issuance,
when required, of standby letters of guarantes.
At September 30, 2005, standby letters of guar-

antee in the aggregate amount of approximately
$0.5 million were outstanding.

Future maturities of long-term debt are as
follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2006 e $36,000
2007 36,000
2008 . 18,000

$90,000

NOTE 5 — INCOME TAXES

Domestic and foreign income before income
taxes for the three-year period ended Septem-
ber 30, 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 2003

Domestic income (loss) S (45) $ 1,094 $(5112)
Foreign income ........ 25,653 11,308 6,748

$25,608 $12,402 $1,636

The provision (benefit) for domestic and
foreign taxes on income consists of the following
(in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2005 2004 2003
Current — domestic. . . .. $(3,278) $ 277 § 361
Deferred — domestic . . .. (270) (990) 700
Current — foreign ...... 2,205 6,678 8,727
Deferred — foreign. .. ... 940 (1,050) 4,650

$ (403) $4815 $14,438
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The components of the deferred income tax
assets (liabilities) as of September 30, 2005 and
2004 are as follows (in thousands):

September 30,

2005 2004
Deferred tax assets —
Net operating loss
carryforwards . .......... ... S 5900 $ 5,130
Tax credit carryforwards....... 1,390 1,250
Book accruals .. ... ... ... 20 260

7,310 6,640

Deferred tax liabilities —
Difference in book and tax

basis of equipment ......... (22,630) (24,090
Deferred income.............. (1,330) (820)
(23,860) (24,910)
Net deferred tax assets
(liabilities) before valuation
allowance ................... (16,550) (18,270)
Valuation allowance............. (510) (370)

$(17,060) $(18,640)
S 3,080 § 290

Net current deferred tax assets. . .
Net noncurrent deferred tax

liabilities .................... (20,140) (18,930)

$(17,060) $(18,640)

Of the $5.9 million of net operating loss
carryforwards (“NOL’s'"), $3.0 million of United
States NOL's expire in 2025 and $2.9 million of
Australian NOL's do not expire. In addition,
$0.7 million of the $1.4 million of tax credit
carryforwards do not expire, and $0.2 million
expire in 2022. Management expects that the
NOL's and tax credit carryforwards will be
utilized to offset tax obligations in future periods
with the exception of $0.5 million of the tax
credit carryforwards that will begin to expire in
2012. Thus, a corresponding $0.5 million valua-
tion allowance is recorded as of September 30,
2005. An analysis of the change in the valuation
allowance during the current fiscal year is as
follows (in thousands):

Valuation Allowance as of September 30, 2004 ... $370
Foreign tax credit carryforwards generated . . .. 140
Valuation Allowance as of September 30, 2005 ... $510

We do not incur federal income taxes on the
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries
that we consider to be permanently reinvested
in foreign operations. In addition, there was no
cumulative amount of such undistributed earn-
ings at September 30, 2005.

The differences between the statutory and
the effective income tax rate are as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 2003
Statutory income tax rate 35% 35% 35%
Impact of foreign
recrganization ......... — 361
Prior period tax items . ... (23) 3 —

Increase (decrease) in tax

rate resulting from —

Foreign tax rate

differentials, net of

foreign tax credit

utilization ... .......... (1_4) 7 487
@)%  39%  883%

Effective income tax rate

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2005,
we received a $1.7 million tax refund in Malaysia
related to a previously reserved tax receivable. A
$1.0 million deferred tax benefit was recognized
in June 2005 due to the filing and subsequent
acceptance by the local tax authority, of
amended prior year tax returns. On December 1,
2005, we received notification from the United
States Department of Treasury that a previously
reserved United States income tax refund we
had been pursuing for over two years had been
approved for payment. Based upon this approval,
we reduced our income tax provision by the
refund amount of $3.3 million for the vear ended
September 30, 2005. Furthermore, during fiscal
year 2005, operating income earned in certain
nontaxable and deemed profit tax jurisdictions
was higher when compared to the prior fiscal
year, including business interruption proceeds
earned by the ATWOOD BEACON in a zero tax
jurisdiction for approximately three and a half
months, which contributed to our lower effective
tax rate. As a result of these items, our effective
tax rate for fiscal year 2005 was significantly less
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when compared to the prior fiscal year and the
United States statutory rate.

Due to the low level of operating income in
the United States during fiscal year 2004, and
the operating loss in the United States in the
prior fiscal year, in addition to operating losses
in certain nontaxable foreign jurisdictions for
both fiscal years, our effective tax rate for fiscal
year 2004 exceeded the United States statutory
rate.

NOTE 6 — CAPITAL STOCK
PREFERRED STOCK —

In 1975, 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock
with no par value were authorized. In October
2002, we designated Series A Junior Participat-
ing Preferred Stock. No preferred shares have
been issued.

COMMON STOCK —

We are authorized to issue up to
20,000,000 shares of common stock. In October
2004, we sold in a public offering
1,175,000 shares of cur common stock at an
effective net price (before expenses) of $45.83 for
net proceeds of approximately $63.6 million. We
used these proceeds and cash on hand to repay
the $55 million cutstanding as of September 30,
2004 under the revolving portion of our Credit
Facility.
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EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS —

We have a stock incentive plan (‘2001
Plan’’) whereby 1,000,000 shares of common
stock may be granted to officers, board members
and key employees through December 5, 2011.
At September 30, 2005, options to
purchase 471,500 shares were outstanding under
this Plan. We also have options outstanding to
purchase 374,650 shares under a 1996 Plan and
2,000 shares under a 1990 Plan; however, no
additional options or restricted stock will be
awarded under the 1996 and 1990 Plans. Under
all plans, the exercise price of each option
equals the market price of one share of our
common stock on the date of grant, with all
outstanding options having a maximum term of
10 years. Options vest over a period from the
end of the first to the fourth year from the date
of grant under the 2001 Plan and from the end of
the second to the fifth year from the date of
grant under the 1996 and 19380 Plans. Each
option is for the purchase of one share of our
common stock. The stock incentive plans also
provide for other types of awards, including but
not limited to, restricted stock awards. As of
September 30, 2005, no awards other than
options had been granted under the plans. All
stock incentive plans currently in effect have
been approved by the shareholders of our out-
standing common stock.
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A summary of the status of our Plans as of September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, and changes
during the years ended on those dates is presented below:

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003
Weighted
Number Average Weighted Weighted
of Exercise Number of Average Number of Average
Options Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning of Year ... ... 982,675 $30.92 823,575 $31.37 825,075 $31.27
Granted ........... ... . 170,000 50.31 185,000 27.65 20,000 28.69
Exercised . ....... ... . .. (293,400) 29.38 (21,400) 2158 (6,000) 13.10
Forfeited .......... .. .. .. .. ... ... ... (7,625) 35.70 (4,500) 31.07 (15,5C0) 26.78
Expired ... ... — — — - — —
Outstanding at end of fiscal year ...... 851,650 $35.28 982,675 $30.92 823,575 $31.37
Exercisable at end of fiscal year ....... 467,463 $32.53 547,800 $31.33 431325 $30.32
Available for grant at end of fiscal year 538,250 700,625 881,125
Weighted-average fair value of options
granted during the fiscal year ....... S 20.44 $ 14.15 $ 1470

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at September 30,

2005:

Range of
Exercise
Prices

$16.63 to 18.97
27.82 to 28.00
30.06 to 37.75
39.10 to 67.51

16.63 to 67.51

RIGHTS AGREEMENT —

In September 2002, we authorized and de-
clared a dividend of one Right (as defined in
Rights Agreement effective October 18, 2002,
which governs the Rights) for each outstanding
share of common stock as of November 5, 2002,
subject to lender approval and consent, which
was obtained. One Right will also be associated
with each share of common stock that becomes
outstanding after November 5, 2002 but before
the earliest of the Distribution Date, the Re-
demption Date and the Final Expiration Date (as
defined in Rights Agreement). The Rights are
not exercisable until a person or group of
affiliated or associated persons begin to acquire

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Remaining Exercise Exercise
Shares Contractual Life Price Shares Price
43,500 2.8 years $17.46 43,500 $17.46
195,875 7.1 years 2717 3,600 27.42
364,125 5.8 years 32.26 284,813 32.56
248150 7.5 years 4924 65,650 48.13
851,650 6.5 years $35.28 467,463 $32.53
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or acquires beneficial ownership of 15 percent or
more of our outstanding common stock. This
provision does not apply to shareholders already
holding 15 percent or more of our outstanding
common stock as of November 5, 2002 until they
acquire an additional 5 percent. When exercisa-
ble, each Right entitles the registered holder to
purchase from us one one-thousandth of a share
of our Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, no par value, at a price of $150 per one
one-thousandth of a preferred share, subject to
adjustment. The Rights will expire on Novem-
ber b, 2012. At September 30, 2005, 500,000
preferred shares have been reserved for issuance
in the event that Rights are exercised.
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NOTE 7 — RETIREMENT PLANS

We have two contributory retirement plans
(the “Plans’’) under which qualified participants
may make contributions, which together with
our contributions, can be up to 100% of their
compensation, as defined, to a maximum of
$40,000. Participants must contribute from 1 to
5 percent of their earnings as a required contri-
bution (‘'the basic contribution’’). We make
contributions to the Plans equal to twice the
basic contributions. After six consecutive
months of service, an employee can elect to
become a participant in a Plan. Our contribu-
tions vest 100% to each participant after three
years of service with us including any period of
ineligibility mandated by the Plans. If a partici-
pant terminates employment before becoming
fully vested, the unvested portion is credited to
our account and can be used only to offset our
future contribution requirements. During fiscal
years 2005 and 2003, no forfeitures were utilized
to reduce our cash contribution requirements
while in fiscal year 2004, $120,000 of forfeitures
were utilized to reduce our cash contribution
requirements. In fiscal years 2005, 2004 and
2003, actual cash contributions totaled approxi-
mately $2.7 million, $2.4 million and $2.5 millicn,
respectively. As of September 30, 2005, there
were approximately $60,000 of contribution for-
feitures during fiscal year 2005, which can be
utilized to reduce our future cash contribution
requirements.

NOTE 8 — FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts paya-
ble and accrued liabilities included in the ac-
companying Consolidated Balance Sheets
approximate fair value due to the short maturity
of these instruments. Since the Credit Facility
(as described in Note 4) has a market adjustable
interest rate, the carrying value approximated
fair value as of September 30, 2005 and 2004.
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NOTE 9 — CONCENTRATION OF MARKET
AND CREDIT RISK

All of our customers are in the oil and gas
offshore exploration and production industry.
This industry concentration has the potential to
impact our overall exposure to market and credit
risks, either positively or negatively, in that our
custemers could be affected by similar changes
in economic, industry or other conditions. How-
ever, we believe that the credit risk posed by
this industry concentration is offset by the
creditworthiness of our customer base.

Revenues from significant customers from
the prior three fiscal years are as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 2003
ExxonMobil Production
Malaysia, Inc. ....... $25,331 $33,256  $47.827
Esso Exploration Angola — 180 19,514
Woodside Energy Ltd. .. 30,757 5,825 25,324
Sarawak Shell Bhd. ..... 24,446 — —
Burullus Gas Company .. 22,118 16,734 5,641

NOTE 10 — COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

OPERATING LEASES

We lease our Houston, Texas office space
under an operating lease agreement which will
expire in fiscal year 2008.

Future minimum lease payments for operat-
ing leases for the fiscal years ending Septem-
ber 30 are as follows (in thousands):

2006 ... 1,232
2007 ..o 863
2008 ... 175

Total rent expense under operating leases
was approximately $1,755,000, $597,000 and
$567,000 for fiscal years ended September 30,
2005, 2004, and 2003 respectively.
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LITIGATION

We are party to a number of lawsuits which
are ordinary, routine litigation incidental to our
business, the cutcome of which, individually, or
in the aggregate, is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on our financial position,
results of operations, or cash flows.

NOTE 11 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In October 2005, we sold our semisubmer-
sible hull, SEASCOUT, for $10.0 million (net after
certain expenses) and our spare 15,000 P.S.1.
BOP Stack for $15.0 million. As of September 30,
2005, the SEASCOUT has been presented as an
Asset held for sale in the consolidated balance
sheets.

NOTE 12 — RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNT-
ING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board ('FASB") issued SFAS No. 123
(Revised 2004), '‘Share-Based Payment"”

(""SFAS 123(R)"'). This Statement revises

SFAS No. 123 by eliminating the option to
account for employee stock options under APB
No. 25 and generally requires companies to
recognize the cost of employee services received
in exchange for awards of equity instruments
based on the fair value on the grant date of
those awards (the ‘‘fair-value-based’ method).
SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for public entities as
of the beginning of their first fiscal year begin-
ning after June 15, 2005. Accordingly, effective
October 1, 2005, we adopted and implemented
SFAS 123(R). We will use the modified prospec-
tive method without restatement of prior periods.
The impact of adopting SFAS 123(R) will be to
record expense for previously-issued but un-
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vested employee stock options and for any
employee stock options that we issue in the
future. We expect the dollar impact on our
financial statements to be generally consistent
with the impact previously disclosed in the pro
forma disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123,
beginning with the first quarter of fiscal year
2006 (see Note 2).

In May 2005, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections — a replacement of APB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3,"" which is
effective for reporting a change in accounting
principle for fiscal years beginning after Decem-
ber 15, 20056. The Statement changes the report-
ing of a change in accounting principle to
require retrospective application to prior periods’
financial statements, except for explicit transition
provisions provided for in new accounting pro-
nouncements or existing accounting pronounce-
ments, including those in the transition phase
when SFAS No. 154 becomes effective. We will
apply SFAS No. 154 as required.

NOTE 13 — OPERATIONS BY
GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

We are engaged in offshore contract drilling.
Our contract drilling operations consist of con-
tracting owned or managed offshecre drilling
equipment primarily to major oil and gas explo-
ration companies. Operating income is contract
revenues less operating costs, general and ad-
ministrative expenses and depreciation. In com-
puting operating income (loss) for each
geographic area, other income (expense) and
domestic and foreign income taxes were not
considered. Total assets are those assets that we
use in operations in each geographic area.
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A summary of revenues and operating margin for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2005, 2004
and 2003 and identifiable assets by geographic areas as of September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 is as
follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 2003
REVENUES:
United States . .. e $ 11,869 $ 9565 $ 8,303
SOUtNEAST ASIA .. .. 100,631 97,654 58,671
MediteIranean Sea . . ... vt e e 23,829 28,627 51,468

Australia . ... 39,827 27,608 26,323
) $176,156 3163454 $144,765

OPERATING INCOME:

United States . oottt et e S (622) $ (2197) $ (4,232)
SOULNEASE ASIA . oot e 45,432 30,070 23,163
MediteITanean Sea . . .o\ o o 2,142 385 (7,692)
AUstalia . ... (380) 4678 9,268
Corporate general and administrative 8Xpenses .. ..., (14,245) (11,389) (14,015)

$ 32,327 $ 21547 § 6492

TOTAL ASSETS:

United StateS ..ottt $ 32583 $ 30370 3 38,336
Southeast Asia ............. e 302,354 258,648 245,446
Mediterranean Sea . .. .. .o i 36,980 95,253 122,586
ATICA o 980 — 111,179
AUSTIALIA o . e 115,623 113,331 3,062
General corporate and Other . . ... . e 7,274 1,334 2,065

$495,694 $498,936 $522,674
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NOTE 14 — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Summarized quarterly results for fiscal years 2005 and 2004 are as follows (in thousands, except
per share amounts):

QUARTERS ENDED(1)
December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,

Fiscal 2005

REVELIUES v e et e e e e $45,426 $41,017 $43,58¢ $46,124
Income before inCome taxes. . ... et ie .. 8,143 6,100 5 93¢ 5,432
NEt INCOME . .ot e e e e e 8,650 4,711 5,98% 6,661
Earnings per common share —
BasiC. .o 0.57 0.31 0.3¢ 0.44
DIlUted ..o 0.56 0.30 0.38 042
Fiscal 2004
REVENUES . .ot e e $35,325 $36,810 $48,386 $42,933
Income (loss) before income taxes. . ... oot i (64) 2,235 8,68% 1,642
Net income (J0SS5) . v v ot e (1,904) 462 5,68% 3,344
Earnings (loss) per common share —
Basic. . (0.14) 0.03 041 0.24
DIIUEEA © vt et e (0.14) 0.03 0.40 0.24

(1) The sum of the individual quarterly net income per common share amounts may not agree with
year-to-date net income per common share as each quarterly computation is based on the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during that period.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

DIRECTORS

DEBORAH A. BECK (2,3,4)
Executive Vice President — Planning and Technology
Northwest Mutual Life Insurance Company
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

ROBERT W. BURGESS (2,3,4)
Financial Executive, Retired
Orleans, Massachusetts

GEORGE S. DOTSON (1,2,3,4)
Vice President
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
President
Helmerich & Payne International
Drilling Co.
Tulsa, Oklahoma

HANS HELMERICH (1,4)
President, Chief Executive Officer
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
Tulsa, Oklahoma

JOHN R. IRWIN (1)
President, Chief Executive Officer
Atwood Oceanics, Inc.
Houston, Texas

WILLIAM J. MORRISSEY (2,4)
Bank Executive, Retired
Elkhorn, Wisconsin
(1) Executive Committee
(2) Audit Committee
(3) Compensation Committee
(4) Nominating & Corporate Governance Committee

OFFICERS

JOHN R. IRWIN
President, Chief Executive Officer

JAMES M. HOLLAND
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Secretary

GLEN P. KELLEY
Senior Vice President — Marketing and Administration

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual mesting of stockholders will be held at
10:00 A M., Central Standard Time, on Thursday, Febru-
ary 9, 2006 at our principal office: 15835 Park Ten Place
Drive, Houston, Texas, 77084. A formal notice of the
meeting together with a proxy statement and form of
proxy will be mailed to stockholders on or about
January 10, 2006.
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TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
2 Broadway
New York, New York 10004

FORM 10-K

A copy of our Form 10-K as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission is available free on request
by writing to:

Secretary, Atwood Oceanics, Inc.
P. O. Box 218350
Houston, Texas 77218

We file our annual report on Form 10-K as well as
quarterly and current reports, proxy statements, all
required Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 302 certifications by
our CEO and CFO regarding the quality of our public
disclosure and other information with the SEC. Qur CEO
has also certified to the NYSE that we are not aware of
any violations of NYSE corporate governance listing
standards. Our SEC filings are available to the public
over the internet at the SEC’s web site at
http://www.sec.gov. Our website address is
www.atwd.com. We make available free of charge on or
through our website our annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the
SEC. Information on our website is not incorporated by
reference into this report or made a part hereof for any
purpose. You may also read and copy any document we
file, including our Form 10-K, at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC
20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further
information on the public reference rooms and copy
charges.

STOCK PRICE INFORMATION —

The common stock of Atwood Oceanics, Inc. is
traded on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under
the symbol “ATW''. No cash dividends on common stock
were pald in fiscal year 2004 or 2005, and none are
anticipated in the foreseeable future. We have approxi-
mately 2,800 beneficial owners of our common stock
based upon a report provided to us by a third party
shareholder services provider dated December 9, 2005 .
As of December 12, 2005, the closing sale price of the
common stock of Atwood Oceanics, Inc., as reported by
NYSE, was $83.12 per share. The following table sets
forth the range of high and low sales prices per share of
common stock as reported by the NYSE for the periods
indicated.

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004

Quarters Ended Low High Low High

December 31 ...... $4598 $53.98 $23.30 $33.69
March 31 ......... 47.05 71.25 31.53 40.27
June 30........... 50.18 69.90 33.64 42.90
September 30 ... .. 58.79 86.12 36.48 48.75



